
 

 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
discussed during Agenda Item #7 – Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at 
this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of 
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda.  If a member of the public wishes to speak 
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

Notice of Regular Meeting 
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, March 28, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in 
one of these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could 
be taken. 
 

All persons desiring to speak during any Public Comment period are asked to fill out a “Board Appearance Form” to 
submit to the General Manager prior to the start of the meeting. Each individual speaker is limited to a presentation 
time of THREE (3) minutes per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit his/her remarks to a 
total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may be allocated between items in one minute increments up to three minutes. 
Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other speakers. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:    
2. ROLL CALL: 
3. FLAG SALUTE: 
4. AGENDA REVIEW: 
5. CLOSED SESSION:  

 

A. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(a): Conference with legal counsel regarding Santa Maria 
Valley Water Conservation District v. City of Santa Maria, et al., 
 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM) 

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:  
A. STAFF REPORTS: 

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino  
ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman 
iii. OCSD General Manager – Paavo Ogren 
iv. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Stuart MacDonald  

 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
i. Director Angello 

ii. Director Brunet 
iii. President White 
iv. Vice President Austin 
v. Director Coalwell 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 

 
 

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano 
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA.  Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the 
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org   
ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board 
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting 
so necessary arrangements can be made. 

 March 28, 2018 - Page 1 of 38

http://www.oceanocsd.org/


 

 
Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on public hearing items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

ASISTENCIA A DISCAPACITADO Si usted está incapacitado de ninguna manera y necesita alojamiento para participar en la 
reunión de la Junta, por favor llame a la Secretaría de la Junta al (805) 481-6730 para recibir asistencia por lo menos tres (3) 
días antes de la reunión para que los arreglos necesarios puedan ser hechos.  

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018 

 
B. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 

 
 

9. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

   
A. Submittal of a resolution adopting a policy governing bid protests and other challenges to construction 

contracts 
 

B. Review, discuss and provide direction as deemed appropriate by your Board regarding the agenda item 
considered by the Five Cities Fire Authority at their meeting on March 16, 2018 proposing two 
preliminary budgets to develop the FY 2018-19 Budget 
 
 

10. HEARING ITEMS:  
 

11. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  
 

12. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:    
 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; update, Roles and Responsibilities with Related 
Agencies; Construction Documents, Five Cities Fire Authority 5, District Rules and Regulations, Seabreeze 
Mobile Home Park Continued  
 

14. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS:  
 

15. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

 
 

  

March 28, 2018 - Page 2 of 38



Oceano Community Services District 
Summary Minutes 

Regular Meeting Wednesday, February 28, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER: at 5:30 p.m. by President White
2. FLAG SALUTE: led by Director Brunet
3. ROLL CALL:  All Board members present. Also present, General Manager Paavo Ogren, District Legal

Counsel Jeff Minnery, Business and Accounting Manager Carey Casciola, and Board Secretary Celia Ruiz.
4. AGENDA REVIEW: Agenda approved as presented.
5. CLOSED SESSION: was entered at approximately 5:38pm. Open session was resumed at approximate

6:38pm
No public comment
A. Pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(2): Conference with District Counsel regarding

anticipated litigation.  Number of cases:  one (1).
Reportable action: None

B. Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9(a): Conference with legal counsel regarding Santa Maria
Valley Water Conservation District v. City of Santa Maria, et al.,
Reportable action: None

6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM):
Public comment was received by Ryan Whiteside, Charles Varni, and Annita Hurst.

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:
a. STAFF REPORTS:

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino – Field Supervisor Marraccino reported on 13
USA’s, 12 work orders, 11 customer service call, 4 call outs, 1 SSO on Beach St, meter reads,
trash pickups filled 4 roll offs in the last 3 months, irrigation repair, high’s and low’s for billing,
VFD booster blew up, line break pipe was 1” 1952 steel line, hit and run on Pier hydrant,
potholed Airpark for County.

ii. FCFA - Chief Steve Lieberman – None
iii. OCSD General Manager – General Manager Ogren reported on LRRP, drought declared over

in 2017, and gave update on Zone 3 Advisory.
iv. Sheriff’s South Station – Commander Stuart McDonald – None

b. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS:
i. Director Angello – None

ii. Director Brunet – None
iii. President White – reported on FCFA, and attended CSDA Annual Meeting
iv. Vice President Austin – reported on SSLOCSD
v. Director Coalwell – None

c. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:
No public comment.

Agenda Item 8A - Page 1 of 2March 28, 2018 - Page 3 of 38



 
 
 
8 CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION: 
a. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular 

Meeting on January 24, 2018 
b. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 

 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, staff recommendations were approved with a 
modification to Item 8b a removal of a check to 
Everywhere Right Now, Inc for $ 2,000.00 total 
disbursement approval to $ 116,936.39 with a motion from 
Director Coalwell, a second by Vice President Austin and 
a 5-0 vote.  
No public comment.  

 
9 A BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Review of the District’s Reserve Analysis  After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 

discussion, receive and file. 
No public comment.   

 
9 B BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Review and discussion of District and staff priorities 
including consideration of Board correspondence on 
proposed legislation and issues with other agencies, and 
other direction that the Board may deem appropriate   

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, receive and file. 
No public comment.   

 
10.     HEARING ITEMS: None  
  
11.     RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None  
 
12.     LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: Received a formal complaint letter on February 21, 2018 
from Fair Political Practices Commission informing that they will not open an investigation. 
 
13.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; Regional Groundwater Sustainability Project (RGSP) 
update, Roles and Responsibilities with Related Agencies; Emergency Generator, Construction Documents, Five 
Cities Fire Authority 5 Year Strategic Plan. 
 
14.     FUTURE HEARING ITEMS: None 
 

  15.     ADJOURNMENT: at approximately 8:39 pm  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8A - Page 2 of 2March 28, 2018 - Page 4 of 38



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

 

Date: March 28, 2018  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #8B:  Recommendation to Approve Cash Disbursements  

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approve the attached cash disbursements. 

Discussion 

The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements: 

Description Check Sequence* Amounts 
 56857 - 56881  

Disbursements Requiring Board Approval prior to Payment:   

            Regular Payable Register – paid 03/28/2018 56863 - 56880 $214,121.26 
   

Subtotal:  $214,121.26 
Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2016-07):   
            Payroll Disbursements – pay period ending  N/A $27,258.30 
            Reoccurring Utility Disbursements – paid 03/14/2018 56857 - 56860 $820.89 
            Reoccurring Health/Benefits – paid 03/14/2018 56861 - 56862 $201.03 
            SLO County Air Park Drive Deposit – paid 03/28/2018 56881 $100,000.00 

Subtotal:  $128,280.22 
Grand Total:  $342,401.48 

Other Agency Involvement: n/a 

Other Financial Considerations:  Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets. 

Results 

The Board’s review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District’s system of internal controls 
and promotes a well governed community.   

 

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 1 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 5 of 38



 3/23/2018 12:50 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       056863 THRU     056880

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056863  BRISCO'S                                97.45CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056864  GROVER BEACH DOOR                      280.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056865  BURDINE PRINTING & GRAPHICS          1,587.34CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056866  CORIX WATER PRODUCTS (US) INC.          64.35CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056867  ARAMARK                                136.14CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056868  R & T EMBROIDERY, INC.                 174.71CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056869  ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY             2,215.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056870  EVERYWHERE RIGHT NOW, INC.           2,000.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056871  CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO       1,000.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056872  RABOBANK VISA CARD                     185.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056873  J.B. DEWAR, INC.                       242.04CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056874  FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC #135         724.89CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056875  FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY         202,132.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056876  GROVER BEACH, CITY OF                2,367.17CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056877  MINER'S ACE HARDWARE, INC.              40.76CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056878  QUILL CORPORATION                      126.68CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056879  SLO CO PUBLIC HEALTH DEPT.             698.60CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056880  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS                     48.63CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:            214,121.26CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 2 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 6 of 38



Payroll Summary Report
Board of Directors ‐ Agenda Date March 28, 2018

(*)

Gross Wages 3/3/2018 3/17/2018

Regular  $22,967.23 $23,122.93

Overtime Wages $1,074.75 $702.34

Stand By $700.00 $700.00

Gross Wages $24,741.98 $24,525.27

Disbursements

Net Wages $18,719.27 $18,425.94

State and Federal Agencies $4,909.92 $4,918.07

CalPERS ‐ Normal $3,914.29 $3,914.29

Total Disbursements processed with Payroll $27,543.48 $27,258.30

Health & Other  (Disbursed with reoccurring bills) $3,553.40 $3,553.40

Total District Payroll Related Costs $31,096.88 $30,811.70

(*) Previously reported in prior Board Meeting packet ‐ provided for comparison.

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 3 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 7 of 38



 3/12/2018  2:38 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       056857 THRU     056860

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056857  DIGITAL WEST NETWORKS, INC.            394.42CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056858  VERIZON WIRELESS                       204.75CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056859  SO CAL GAS                             132.22CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056860  STANLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY SO          89.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:                820.89CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:                820.89CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 4 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 8 of 38



 3/12/2018  2:43 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       056861 THRU     056862

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056861  TASC -CLIENT INVOICES                   54.67CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

     1-1001-000       3/12/2018 CHECK     056862  SEIU LOCAL 620                         146.36CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:                201.03CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:                201.03CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 5 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 9 of 38



 3/23/2018 12:49 PM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND                                                          CHECK DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000      POOLED CASH OPERATING                                           CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     All                                                                             STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       056881 THRU     056881

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     1-1001-000       3/23/2018 CHECK     056881  SLO CO  DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS       100,000.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0                     CHECK           TOTAL:            100,000.00CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND                     CHECK           TOTAL:            100,000.00CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

Agenda Item 8(b) - Page 6 of 6March 28, 2018 - Page 10 of 38



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: March 28, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item # 9(a):  Submittal of a resolution adopting a policy governing bid protests and other 
challenges to construction contracts. 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approves and directs the President to sign the attached resolution to adopt a 
policy governing Bid Protests and other Challenges to Construction Contracts and direct staff to process pending and future 
construction bids under this policy. 

Discussion 

From time to time, the District seeks formal and informal bids for facility and infrastructure construction contracts 
throughout its jurisdiction.   As such, it is desirable to establish a consistent policy to evaluate bid protests if and when they 
occur.    If adopted, this policy shall apply to the pending Air Park Drive Utility Relocation Project bid proposals and all future 
construction contracts. 

Key elements of the policy include:  

• Authority for bid protest determination is delegated to the District General Manager who has independent 
authority to determine whether a bid is a responsive bid and whether a bidder is a responsible bidder.  

• The District General Manager’s decision is final with no provision for reconsideration or appeal to the District 
Board. 

• Bid protest submittals and responses are subject to specific guidelines, including deadlines for submittal and 
response. 

• Bidders failing to follow the written procedures are deemed to have waived their right to challenge the award of 
the construction contract.  

• In cases warranting more review of submitted protest evidence, oral presentations can be called for by the District 
General Manager.  

• The District General Manager will issue a written dismissal or decision on the formally submitted protest within 30 
days from any written or oral presentation on the protest.  

•  Provisions are incorporated to allow actions by the District General Manager regarding bidders seeking relief on 
bid mistakes under Public Contract Code Section 5100 et seq. 

Agenda Item 9a - Page 1 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 11 of 38



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

The recommended policy, once adopted, will provide a uniform method for processing bid protests of construction 
contracts in a timely manner. The bid protest policy will be included or referenced as part of the bidding so bidders are 
notified of the procedure and timing to address a formal protest. 

Other Agency Involvement 

n/a   

Financial Considerations 

Implementation of the proposed policy is not expected to have any financial impact. 

Results 

Adoption of the Proposed Policy Governing Bid Protests and other Challenges to Construction Contracts will provide for a 
single process leading to final resolution for addressing irregularities or issues which arise through the bidding process for 
District construction contracts. Inclusion and/or reference to the policy in future District bidding documents will provide 
proper instruction and greater transparency to bidders.   Establishment of the policy provides for a well governed 
community.   

 

Attachment:   

• Resolution Adopting a Policy Governing Bid Protests and other Challenges to Construction Contracts 

 

Agenda Item 9a - Page 2 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 12 of 38



OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __ 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING  RULES GOVERNING BID PROTESTS AND OTHER 

CHALLENGES TO AWARDS OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Oceano Community Services District (“District”) seeks formal and informal 
bids for facility and infrastructure construction contracts throughout its jurisdiction from time to time; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to establish a uniform procedure for processing bid protests and other 
challenges to the award of construction contracts; and  
 

WHEREAS, the attached “Rules Governing Bid Protests and Other Challenges to Awards of 
Construction Contracts” will establish such a uniform procedure. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano 
Community Services District that: 

 
1. The attached “Rules Governing Bid Protests and Other Challenges to Awards of 

Construction Contracts” is hereby adopted and the General Manager is hereby 
delegated all of the powers, authority and duties needed to comply with the 
requirements and guidelines as set forth in the rules.  
 

2. The District General Manager shall reference said rules in future bid documents for 
construction contracts and once adopted, the rules shall apply to all pending as well as 
future construction projects subject to bid. 

 
3. The District General Manager shall have authority to make non-substantive revisions 

to the rules as needed to conform to specific projects, however, the rules shall remain 
in substantial conformance with the rules as adopted herein. 
 

4. The District General Manager shall maintain a record of the processing of bid protests 
should they occur.   

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano Community Services 
District on March 28, 2018 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Board of Directors 

of the Oceano Community Services District 
 
 
 
 
 Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 3 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 13 of 38



 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Board Secretary of the 
Oceano Community Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel

 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 4 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 14 of 38



 
 
 
 

OCEANO 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

Rules Governing Bid Protests And Other 
Challenges to Awards of Construction 
Contracts 

 
 

 
The requirements set forth in these “Rules Governing Bid Protests And Other 
Challenges to Awards of Construction Contracts” (“Rules”) are mandatory and 
are a Bidder’s sole and exclusive remedy in the event a Bidder desires to 
challenge, protest or contest the award of any Construction Contract. A 
Bidder’s failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute a waiver 
of any right to challenge, protest or contest the award of a Construction 
Contract in any subsequent proceeding, including but not limited to, the filing of 
a court action. 

 
A Bidder may not rely upon another Bidder’s compliance with the 
requirements of these Rules. Any Bidder that does not independently comply 
with the requirements set forth herein shall be deemed to have waived any 
right to challenge, protest or contest the award of a Construction Contract. 

 
Nothing in these Rules affects the right of the District to reject all bids at any time 
prior to the award of a Construction Contract. 

 
1.1 Definitions 

 

1.1.1 Bidder - The contractor submitting a bid in response to a District 
solicitation for bids on a Construction Contract. 

1.1.2 Protestor - A Bidder who files a Protest in accordance with the 
provisions of these Rules. 

1.1.3 Board – Board of Directors of the Oceano Community Services 
District (hereinafter, also “District”) 

1.1.4 Construction Contract - Any Construction Contract which is formally 
or informally advertised for bids in which the District , or will be, a 
party. 

1.1.5 Protest – Any challenge, objection, or protest to the award of a 
Construction Contract to any Bidder. 

1.1.6 Response – Any response to a Protest that is filed by an Interested 
Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 5 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 15 of 38



Party in accordance with the provisions of these Rules. 
General Manager - The person designated by the Board to  assume the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities conferred under these Rules. 

1.1.7 Initial Determination – A written notice by the General Manager that notifies 
a Bidder of the reasons why the General Manager believes that a bid is 
nonresponsive, or that a Bidder is not a responsible Bidder. 

1.1.8 Interested Parties - For the purpose of these Rules, Interested Parties are 
defined as: 
1.1.8.1 The District. 
1.1.8.2 Any Bidder that filed a Protest or whose bid is the subject of an 

Initial Determination. 
1.1.8.3 Any Bidder whose eligibility for having the Construction Contract 

awarded to it as a responsible Bidder with the lowest responsive 
bid would be affected by the outcome of a Protest or Initial 
Determination. 

 
 

1.2 General Manager’s Independent Authority to Determine Bid Responsiveness and  
Bidder Responsibility. 

 

1.2.1 Regardless of whether a Protest is submitted under these Rules, the 
General Manager is authorized to determine whether any bid is a 
responsive bid and whether any Bidder is a responsible Bidder. In the event 
the General Manager issues an Initial Determination, the General Manager 
shall provide the Interested Parties with written notice of the Initial 
Determination at least five (5) business days before the General Manager 
renders a final decision addressing the grounds stated in the Initial 
Determination A final decision of the General Manager under this section 
1.2  shall  be  the  final  decision  of  the  District  with  no  provision  for 
reconsideration or appeal to the Board. 

1.2.2 The General Manager need not issue an Initial Determination in order to 
make a final decision on whether a bid is a responsive bid or a Bidder is a 
responsible Bidder. A final decision can also be issued by the General 
Manager through the processing of a Protest pursuant to the procedures 
set forth in these Rules. 

1.2.3 The General Manager reserves the right to amend or withdraw an Initial 
Determination at any time before the General Manager renders a final 
decision addressing the grounds stated in the Initial Determination. When 
an Initial Determination is withdrawn, it shall have the same effect as if the 
Initial Determination had never been made. 

 
1.3 Basis for Protest 

 

1.3.1 Grounds for Protest – The grounds for a Protest may include any grounds a 
Protestor may have for contesting or challenging the award of a 
Construction Contract to any Bidder, including but not limited to the 
following grounds: 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 6 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 16 of 38



1.3.1.1 A Protestor objects to a Construction Contract being awarded to 
another Bidder on the grounds that the other Bidder’s bid is 
nonresponsive. 

1.3.1.2 A Protestor objects to a Construction Contract being awarded to 
another Bidder on the grounds  that the other Bidder is  not a 
responsible Bidder. 

1.3.1.3 A Protestor objects to a Construction Contract being awarded to 
the Protestor on the grounds that the Protestor made a mistake in 
its bid that entitles the Protestor to be relieved of its bid under 
Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq 

1.3.1.4 A Protestor objects to a General Manager’s Initial Determination 
issued under section 1.2.1 above. 

1.3.2 Required Form of Protest - All Protests shall be made in writing, containing 
the information listed below, and shall be filed with the General Manager. 
Protests shall contain the following information: 
1.3.2.1 The name, address, telephone, facsimile numbers, and email 

address of the Protestor. 
1.3.2.2 The signature of the Protestor or its representative. 
1.3.2.3 The bid, solicitation and/or contract number. 
1.3.2.4 The Protest must contain a complete statement of all grounds for 

the Protest, and must refer to the specific portion of the bid 
documents that are the basis of the Protest. The Protest must set 
forth all supporting facts and documentation. If Protester believes 
there are some facts relevant to its Protest that Protester cannot 
adequately present in writing, Protester must describe such facts 
in its Protest under the heading “Facts Requiring Oral 
Presentation”, and state therein the reasons why the Bid Protester 
believes it cannot adequately present those facts through 
documentation. 

1.3.2.5 All information establishing that the Protestor is a Bidder for the 
purpose of filing a Protest. 

1.3.2.6 The form of relief requested. 
 

1.4 Protest Requirements and Procedure 
 

1.4.1 Standing to Protest - Protests shall be filed only by a Bidder. 
1.4.2 Time for Filing a Protest 

1.4.2.1 Except as provided in sections 1.4.2.2 and 1.4.2.3 below, all 
Protests must be submitted in writing to the General Manager 
before 5 p.m. PST of the sixth (6) business day following the date 
upon which the bids on the Construction Contract were opened. 

1.4.2.2 When a Protestor objects to a Construction Contract being 
awarded to the Protester on the grounds that the Protestor made a 
mistake in its bid that entitles the Protestor to be relieved of its bid 
under Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq, the Protest 
must be submitted in writing to the General Manager before 5 
p.m. PST of the fifth (5) business day following the date upon 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 7 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 17 of 38



which  the  bids  on  the  Construction  Contract  were  opened 
pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 5103. 

1.4.2.3 When the Protestor objects to an Initial Determination made by the 
General Manager under section 1.2.1 above, the Protest must be 
submitted in writing to the General Manager before 5 p.m. PST of 
the fifth (5) business day following the date upon which the Initial 
Determination was first delivered to Protestor (either electronically 
or otherwise). 

1.4.3 Written Responses of Interested Parties - If any Interested Party desires to 
respond to the Protest, the Response must be submitted in writing to the 
General Manager within five (5) business days of the date the Protest was 
first delivered to the Interested Party (either electronically or otherwise). If 
an Interested Party believes there are some facts relevant to its Response 
that the Interested Party cannot adequately present in writing, the 
Interested Party must describe such facts in its Response under the 
heading “Facts Requiring Oral Presentation”, and state therein the reasons 
why the Interested Party believes it cannot adequately present those facts 
through documentation. 

1.4.4 Proof of Transmittal - All Protests, Responses, and Replies shall include 
documentation evidencing that all Interested Parties were concurrently sent 
a complete copy of the respective Protest, Response or Reply in a manner 
that would provide all Interested Parties with a complete copy of the 
respective Protest, Response or Reply no later than one (1) business day 
after it was sent to the General Manager. The means of transmission 
chosen must also provide the sending party a means of verifying the date 
and time the copy was received by each Interested Party. Transmission by 
email may be an acceptable means of transmittal. 

1.4.5 No Ex Parte or Unilateral Communications on the Merits of a Protest - No 
Bidder shall have any written communications regarding the merits of a 
Protest with the General Manager that are not concurrently sent to all of 
the other Interested Parties. No Bidder shall have any oral 
communications regarding the merits of a Protest with the General 
Manager other than during an oral presentation properly noticed by the 
General Manager under these Rules. 

1.4.6 Suspension of Process for Proposed Rejection of all Bids - At any time 
during the processing of a Protest, the General Manager may elect to 
indefinitely suspend any further processing of the Protest by providing 
written notice to all Interested Parties that the General Manager intends to 
recommend to the Board that all bids be rejected. All time deadlines 
provided in these Rules shall be tolled during any such suspension period. 
If the Board decides to not reject all bids, or if the General Manager 
otherwise decides to lift the suspension, the requirements of these Rules 
shall be reactivated upon the General Manager providing all Interested 
Parties with written notice thereof. 

 
1.5 Summary Dismissal of Protest 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 8 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 18 of 38



The General Manager may summarily dismiss a protest, or specific protest 
allegations, at any time that the General Manager determines that the Protest is 
untimely, frivolous, or without merit; is not submitted in the required form  of 
Protest, as set forth above in section 1.3.2., "Required Form of Protest;" or is 
submitted by a non-Bidder. In such cases, a notice of summary dismissal will be 
furnished to the Interested Parties. Such a summary dismissal shall be the final 
decision of the District with no provision for reconsideration or appeal to the 
Board. 

 
1.6 Decision by the General Manager Based on Written Submissions Only 

 
In reaching a decision on the merits of a Protest, the General Manager may 
consider relevant documentation submitted by the Protestor and any other 
Interested Party. If the General Manager wishes to have additional information 
submitted that was not included in the Protest or in any documentation from other 
Interested Parties,  the General Manager  may make a request  specifying  the 
information sought and time for submittal. Submissions of additional information 
that have not been specifically requested by the General Manager may not be 
considered at the General Manager’s sole discretion. If the General Manager 
does not provide an opportunity for an oral presentation under section 1.7 below, 
the General Manager will issue a written decision without any oral presentation. . 
The General Manager’s decision shall be the final decision of the District with no 
provision for reconsideration or appeal to the Board. 

 
1.7 Decision by the General Manager Following Oral Presentation 

 

1.7.1 The General Manager may, at his or her discretion, elect to provide an 
opportunity for the Protestor and other Interested Parties to make an oral 
presentation to the General Manager regarding the Protest. In such event. 
oral presentations shall be conducted in accordance with the following 
procedure: 
1.7.1.1 Notice of Oral Presentation - The General Manager will set a 

date, time, and place for an oral presentation. Written notice will 
be sent to Interested Parties not less than five (5) business days 
in advance of the oral presentation unless it is agreeable to all 
parties that an earlier date be established. Continuances may be 
granted by the General Manager for good cause. 

1.7.1.2 Guidelines for Oral Presentation - Oral presentations are informal 
in nature and shall be made by the Protestor or its authorized 
representative. Technical rules of evidence shall not apply. The 
General Manager will determine how the oral presentations will 
be conducted and may set time limits for the presentation. The 
General Manager may question Interested Parties or provide an 
opportunity for Interested Parties to make an oral presentation. 
The General Manager may request additional documentation or 
information prior to, during or after the oral presentation. Unless 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 9 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 19 of 38



requested by the General Manager, additional documentation or 
information may not be accepted. 

1.7.1.3 Record of Oral Presentation - Any Interested Party may request, 
and in the General Manager’s sole discretion, the General 
Manager may allow recording of the presentation. If the General 
Manager allows the presentation to be recorded, the Interested 
Party requesting that the presentation be recorded must pay the 
cost of recording, including the costs to make and distribute 
copies of the recording to the General Manager and other 
Interested Parties. There shall be no cost to the District. 

1.7.1.4 Decisions - The General Manager will issue a written decision 
within 30 calendar days of the oral presentation; however, the 
time for issuing the written decision may be extended by the 
General Manager. A copy of the decision will be furnished to the 
Interested Parties. The decision shall be the final decision of the 
District with no provision for reconsideration or appeal to the 
Board. 

 
 

1.8 Effect on Contracts 
 

The failure of a District employee or department to comply with the provisions 
stated in these Rules shall in no way affect the validity of any Construction 
Contract entered into by the District. 

 
1.9 General Manager Decisions on Protests Seeking Relief from a Bidder’s Mistake 

under Public Contract Code Section 5103. 
 

When a Protestor objects to a Construction Contract being awarded to the Bid 
Protester on the grounds that the Protestor made a mistake in its bid that entitles 
the Protestor to be relieved of its bid under Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et 
seq, a final decision of the General Manager that relieves the Protestor of its bid 
on the grounds of mistake must be approved by the Board before it can become a 
final decision of the District. Any other final decision of the General Manager 
regarding a Protestor's request to be relieved of its bid on the grounds of mistake 
under Public Contract Code Sections 5100 et seq, shall be the final decision of the 
District with no provision for reconsideration or appeal to the Board. 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9a - Page 10 of 10March 28, 2018 - Page 20 of 38



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: March 28, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

 

Subject: Agenda Item # 9(b):  Review, discuss and provide direction as deemed appropriate by your 
Board regarding the agenda item considered by the Five Cities Fire Authority at their meeting on March 
16, 2018 proposing two preliminary budgets to develop the FY 2018-19 Budget. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board review and discuss the attached agenda materials from the Five 
Cities Fire Authority and provide direction as your Board deems appropriate. 

Discussion 

The staff report from the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) on March 16, 2018 is attached.  Two 
preliminary budgets were proposed to the board to further develop a final budget for fiscal year 
2018-19 for FCFA.  A presentation summarizing the attached item will be verbally presented at your 
Board meeting.  

Other Agency Involvement and Financial Considerations 

Five Cities Fire Authority 

Results 

Reviewing and discussing budget items on fire and emergency services promotes a better 
understanding of regional and local issues, challenges and opportunities. 

 

Attachment:   

• Five Cities Fire Authority Staff Report  

 
Agenda Item 9b - Page 1 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 21 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 2 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 22 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 3 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 23 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 4 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 24 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 5 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 25 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 6 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 26 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 7 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 27 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 8 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 28 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 9 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 29 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 10 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 30 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 11 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 31 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 12 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 32 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 13 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 33 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 14 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 34 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 15 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 35 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 16 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 36 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 17 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 37 of 38



Attachment - FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9b - Page 18 of 18March 28, 2018 - Page 38 of 38


	03282018 Regular Meeting Agenda
	03282018 Agenda Item 8A - 02282018 Minutes
	03282018 Agenda Item 8B - Cash Disbursements
	Draft Staff Report Cash Disbursements
	03282018 REGULAR CR Check Reconciliation Register - 8763
	PAYROLL SUMMARY 03 17 2018
	03282018 UTILITY CR Check Reconciliation Register - 8553
	03282018 HEALTH CR Check Reconciliation Register - 8554
	03282018 AIR PARK DR CR Check Reconciliation Register - 8762

	03232018 Agenda Item 9A - Resolution re Adoption of Bid Protest
	Attachment - Resolution re Adoption of Bid Protest.pdf
	OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __


	03282018 Agenda Item 9B - FCFA



